IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 02-30404
Conf er ence Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,

Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
vVer sus
STEVEN W ARNOLD,

Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Western District of Loui siana
USDC No. 99-CR-50017-ALL

~ October 30, 2002

Bef ore DeMOSS, BENAVI DES, and STEWART, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *

Steven W Arnol d appeals fromthe revocation of his
supervi sed rel ease and his sentence to 24 nonths’ inprisonnent.
He argues that the evidence was insufficient to support the
determ nation that he used and possessed control |l ed substances in
violation of one of the conditions of his supervised rel ease;
that the district court erred by failing to consider whether the

availability of substance abuse prograns warranted an exception

to mandatory revocation; and that the district court erred by

Pursuant to 5THCGR R 47.5, the court has determ ned
that this opinion should not be published and is not precedent
except under the limted circunstances set forth in 5TH QR
R 47.5. 4.
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finding that his drug possession constituted a Gade C violation
instead of a Grade B violation and by inposing a 24-nonth term of
i nprisonnment. Arnold s argunents are unconvi nci ng.

First, Arnold admtted at the revocation hearing that he
had used drugs. Arnold s adm ssion and the |aboratory reports
were sufficient evidence for the district court to find that
he use and possessed illegal substances. See United States
v. McCormck, 54 F.3d 214, 226 (5th Gr. 1995). Second, the
district court’s comments at the revocation hearing and the
recomendation in the witten judgnent that Arnold be placed in
a facility where he could receive |ong-termdrug treatnent
constituted an inplicit determnation that the availability of
drug-treatnent prograns did not warrant an exception to the
mandatory revocation requirenent of 18 U S.C. 8§ 3583(g)(1).

Third, because Arnold previously had been convicted of a
drug-trafficking offense, his supervised rel ease violation
was a Gade B violation, U S.S.G § 7Bl1.1(a)(2), p.s.; see
21 U S. C 8§ 844(a), subjecting himto a recommended gui del i ne
sentenci ng range of 18-24 nonths’ inprisonnent. U S S G
8§ 7Bl.4(a), p.s. Arnold s maximum statutory sentence for his
supervi sed rel ease violation was 24 nonths’ inprisonnent.

18 U.S.C. 8§ 3583(e)(3); see 18 U . S.C. 88 3146(b) (1) (A (ii),
3559(a)(4). The 24-nonth terminposed on Arnold was within the
statutory sentencing range and the sentencing range reconmended

by the policy statenent and therefore was not in violation of |aw
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or plainly unreasonable. United States v. Headrick, 963 F.2d
777, 779 (5th Cr. 1992).

AFF| RMED.



